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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS 

OF
ORION PHARMA LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Orion Pharma Limited and its subsidiaries and associates (the 
group), as well as the separate financial statements of Orion Pharma Limited (the company), which comprise the 
consolidated and separate Statement of Financial Position as at June 30, 2016 and consolidated and separate Statement of 
Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income, consolidated and separate Statement of Changes in Equity and 
consolidated and separate Statement of Cash Flows for the period from 01 January 2015 to 30 June 2016 then ended and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information thereon.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRSs) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary 
to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSA). Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider 
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their 
reports referred to in sub paragraph (b) of the other matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the group and separate financial statements of the company, give 
a true and fair view of the financial position of the company as well as of the group as at June 30, 2016 and of their 
financial performance and their cash flows for the period from 01 January 2015 to 30 June 2016 then ended in accordance 
with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS's).
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Other Matter

(a) The consolidated financial statements of the group and separate financial statements of the company for the year 
ended December 31, 2014 were audited by another auditor who expressed unqualified opinion on those statements on 
May 12, 2015.

(b) The financial statements of the company's subsidiaries of Dutch Bangla Power and Associates Limited and Orion 
Power Meghnaghat Limited have been audited by another auditor as at June 30, 2016, and who expressed unqualified 
opinion on those statements on August 16, 2016. 

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Companies Act 1994 and Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, we also report that:

(a) we have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary 
for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

(b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far as it appeared from 
our examination of those books; 

(c) the separate and the consolidated statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows dealt with by the report are in agreement with the 
books of account; and

(d) the expenditure incurred was for the purpose of the company's business. 

Dated: 10 November 2016
Place: Dhaka

Sd/-
Ahmad & Akhtar

Chartered Accountants
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Dated: 10 November 2016
Place: Dhaka

ORION PHARMA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES       
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION       

AS AT 30 JUNE 2016

Sd/-
Ahmad & Akhtar

Chartered Accountants

Signed in terms of our separate report of same date annexed.

Sd/-
Managing Director

Sd/-
Director

Sd/-
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/-
Company Secretary
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Dated: 10 November 2016
Place: Dhaka

ORION PHARMA LIMITED
 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2016

Sd/-
Ahmad & Akhtar

Chartered Accountants

Signed in terms of our separate report of same date annexed.

Sd/-
Managing Director

Sd/-
Director

Sd/-
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/-
Company Secretary
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Dated: 10 November 2016
Place: Dhaka

ORION PHARMA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES       
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME         

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016        

Sd/-
Ahmad & Akhtar

Chartered Accountants

Signed in terms of our separate report of same date annexed.

Sd/-
Managing Director

Sd/-
Director

Sd/-
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/-
Company Secretary
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Dated: 10 November 2016
Place: Dhaka

ORION PHARMA LIMITED
  STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME         

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016        

Sd/-
Ahmad & Akhtar

Chartered Accountants

Signed in terms of our separate report of same date annexed.

Sd/-
Managing Director

Sd/-
Director

Sd/-
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/-
Company Secretary
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Dated: 10 November 2016
Place: Dhaka

ORION PHARMA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES      
 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016      

Sd/-
Managing Director

Sd/-
Director

Sd/-
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/-
Company Secretary

period
period

period
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Dated: 10 November 2016
Place: Dhaka

ORION PHARMA LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED  30 JUNE 2016

Sd/-
Managing Director

Sd/-
Director

Sd/-
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/-
Company Secretary

period

period

(Used In)/

(Used In)/
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ORION PHARMA LIMITED
NOTES, COMPRISING A SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 

OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Orion Pharma Limited, earlier called Orion Laboratories Limited was incorporated in 1965 as a private limited 
company. The Company was converted into a public limited company on July 24, 2010. The registered office of 
the company is at 153-154, Tejgaon I/A, Dhaka-1208, Bangladesh. The financial statements of the company as at 
and for the period ended 30 June 2016.

The Company is listed with Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) and Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited 
(CSE).  

1.00 Reporting entity

1.01 Background of the entity

Orion Power Meghnaghat Ltd. (IEL Consortium and Associate Ltd.) was incorporated on 30 June 2010 as a 
public limited company under the Companies Act, 1994 with authorized share capital of Tk. 4,000,000,000 
divided into 400,000,000 Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each. The company implemented a 100 MW HFO Power 
based Plant on quick rental basis in Meghnaghat, Dhaka with machineries and equipment supplied by Wartsila 
OY, Finland. The generated output of 105 MW electricity is being regularly supplied to national grid. Orion 
Pharma Ltd. holds 95% of equity share of this company directly.

1.02 Subsidiary companies 

1.02.1 Orion Power Meghnaghat Ltd.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BASs) and 
Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRSs) adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Bangladesh (ICAB) based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act, 1994, 
Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987 and other relevant local laws as applicable.

2.00 Basis of preparation of financial statements 

2.01 Statement on compliance 

According to the International Accounting Standards (IAS)-1 as adopted by ICAB as BAS-1 "Presentation of 
Financial Statements" the complete set of financial statements includes the following components.

2.02 Components of the Financial Statements

Dutch Bangla Power & Associates Limited was incorporated on 1 July 2010 as a public limited company under 
the Companies Act, 1994 with authorized share capital of Tk 1,000,000,000 divided into 100,000,000 ordinary 
shares of Tk 10 each. The Company has been awarded by the Government of Bangladesh and BPDB to 
implement 100 MW HFO Power Plant on quick rental basis in Siddhirganj, Narayanganj with machineries and 
equipment supplied by Wartsila OY, Finland. The generated output of 105 MW electricity is being regularly 
supplied to national grid. Orion Pharma Ltd. holds 67% of equity share of this Company.

1.02.2 Dutch Bangla Power & Associates Limited

Orion Pharma Limited is engaged in the creation and discovery, development, manufacture and marketing of 
pharmaceutical products including vaccines, and health-related consumer products.

1.01.2 Nature of business

i.       Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2016;
ii.     Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income for the period
         ended 30 June 2016;
iii.    Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended 30 June 2016;
iv.     Statement of Cash Flows for the period ended 30 June 2016; and
v.     Notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
         explanatory information for the period ended 30 June 2016.
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The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain assets which are stated 
either at revalued amount or fair market value as explained in the accompanying notes.

2.03 Basis of measurement

The financial statements are prepared and presented in Bangladesh Taka/Tk./BDT, which is the company's 
functional currency. The Company earns its major revenues in BDT and all other incomes/expenses and 
transactions are in BDT and the competitive forces and regulations of Bangladesh determine the sale prices of its 
goods and services in BDT. Further, the entire funds from financing activities are generated in BDT.

2.04 Functional and presentation currency 

The financial period of the companies other than the following subsidiaries and associates covers one year from 
1 July to 30 June and is followed consistently.

2.05 Reporting period

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies 
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and for contingent assets and liabilities that 
require disclosure, during and at the date of the financial statements.

Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 
ongoing basis. Revisions of accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised 
and in any future periods affected as required by   BAS 8: "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors".

2.06 Use of Estimates and Judgments

An entity in which an investor has significant influence but which is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a 
joint venture is classified as Investment in Associates. Equity Method have been followed in accordance with 
Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BASs) 28 "Investments in Associates and joint ventures" and BASs 
39:"Financial Instruments recognitions and measurements"; and also in respect of certain other associates as 
explained in note 8.

2.07 Investment in associates

Each material item as considered by management significant has been displayed separately in the financial 
statements. No amount has been set off unless the Company has legal right to set off the amounts and intends to 
settle on net basis. Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted by the relevant 
accounting standards. The values of any asset or liability as shown in the statement of financial position ( 
balance sheet ) are not off-set by way of deduction from another liability or asset unless there exist a legal right 
therefore. No such incident existed during the year.

2.08 Materiality, aggregation and off setting

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in this financial 
statement.
Set out below is an index of the significant accounting policies, the details of which are available on the 
following:

3.00 Significant accounting policies

Orion Power Meghnaghat Ltd. 1 July to 30 June 
Dutch Bangla Power & Associates Limited 1 July to 30 June 
Orion Infusion Limited   1 July to 30 June

Name of Subsidiaries / Associates Accounting period

3.01 Revenue
3.02 Property, Plant and Equipment
3.03 Borrowing costs
3.04 Inventory
3.05 Cash and Cash Equivalents
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Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and 
the revenue can be measured reliably, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at 
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of 
payment and excluding taxes or duties. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue 
arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements have pricing latitude and is also 
exposed to inventory and credit risks.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods 
have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods.

Interest income
For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest-bearing financial assets classified as 
available-for-sale, interest income is recorded using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly 
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a 
shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. Interest income is 
included in other income in the Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income.

Dividends
Revenue is recognized when the company's right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when 
shareholders approve the dividend.

Other Income
Other Income recognized on accrual basis as per frame-work of Bangladesh accounting standards (BASs).

3.01 Revenue

Recognition and measurement
An item shall be recognized as property, plant and equipment if, and only it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost and subsequently land, buildings & civil 
constructions and plant & machineries are stated at fair value. The property, plant and equipment are presented 
at cost/fair value, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of an 
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, import duties and non-refundable taxes, 
after deducting trade discount and rebates, and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the 
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the intended manner. The cost also includes 
the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term debt availed 
for the construction/Implementation of the PPE, if the recognition criteria are met.

Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of 
an item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the company 
and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are 
recognized in the profit and loss account as `Repair & Maintenance 'when it is incurred.

3.02 Property, plant and equipment

3.06 Earnings per share (EPS)
3.07 Foreign currency transactions
3.08 Employee benefits
3.09 Provision, accrued expenses and other payables
3.10 Financial instruments
3.11 Segment reporting
3.12 Statement of cash flows
3.13 Related party disclosures
3.14 Income Tax
3.15 Contingent assets and liabilities
3.16 Comparative information
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Depreciation on Fixed Assets
Depreciation is provided to amortize the cost or valuation of the assets after commissioning, over the period of 
their expected useful lives, in accordance with the provisions of BASs 16: Property, Plant and Equipment. 
Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use. Depreciation is charged on all fixed assets except 
land and land developments on reducing balance method at the following rates:

Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment
Land, buildings & civil constructions and plant & machineries are subsequently measured at fair value. 
Valuations are performed at specific intervals to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ 
materially from its carrying amount. 

On 31 December 2008 & 31 December 2011 the Company has made revaluation of the Company's  Land and 
Land developments, Factory and Office Building  and Plant and Machinery to reflect fair value thereof in terms 
Depreciated current cost thereof. Details of revaluation as on 31 December 2011 are as follows:

Factory & Office Building 10%

Plant & Machinery 15%

Furniture and Fixtures 15%

Vehicles 20%

Office Equipment 15%

Laboratory Equipment 15%

Particular of Assets Rate of Depreciation
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154 Orion Pharma Ltd.
Integrated Annual Report '16



w w w . o r i o n p h a r m a b d . c o m

155Orion Pharma Ltd.
Integrated Annual Report '16



The increase in the carrying amount of revalued assets is recognized in the separate component of equity under 
the head "Revaluation Surplus".

Other Fixed Assets were kept outside the scope of the revaluation works. These are expected to be realizable at 
written down value (WDV) thereof mentioned in the Statement of Financial Position of the Company.

Impairment
The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each Statement of Financial Position to 
determine whether there is any indication of impairment loss. If any such indication exists, recoverable amount 
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Impairment loss is recorded on 
judgmental basis, for which provision may differ in the future years based on the actual experience.

Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is removed from the statement of financial position when it is 
disposed of or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss on the 
disposal of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is included in the statement of income of the period in 
which the de-recognition occurs.

Property, plant and equipment under construction/acquisition have been accounted for as capital work-in-
progress until construction/acquisition is completed and measured at cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily 
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the 
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of 
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

3.03 Borrowing costs

Inventories are included in the financial statements at the lower of cost (including raw materials, direct labour, 
other direct costs and related production overheads) and net realizable value. Cost is generally determined on a 
first in, first out basis.

3.04 Inventories

Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash in hand and with banks on current, deposit accounts, short term 
investments and with brokerage house which are held and available for use by the company without any 
restriction. There is insignificant risk of change in value of the same.

3.05 Cash and cash equivalents

The company calculates Earning Per Share (EPS) in accordance with BASs 33 "Earnings Per Share" which has 
been shown on the face of statement of profit or loss and other Comprehensive Income and the computation of 
EPS is stated in Note - 34 of the financial statements.

Basic Earnings
This represents earnings for the period attributable to the ordinary shareholders. As there no preference 
dividend, minority interest or extra ordinary items, the net profit for the year has been considered as fully 
attributable to ordinary shareholders. Basic earnings per has been calculated by dividing the net profit or loss by 
the number of ordinary share outstanding during the year.

Diluted Earnings Per Share (DEPS)
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding, for the effect of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. However, 
dilution of EPS is not applicable for these financial statements as there were no potential ordinary shares during 
the relevant period.

3.06 Earnings per share (EPS)
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Foreign currency transactions are recorded, on initial recognition in the functional currency at the spot exchange 
rate ruling at the transaction date. 
At the end of each reporting period in compliance with the provision of BASs 21: The Effects of Changes in 
Foreign Exchange Rates.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rate 
different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous 
financial statements is recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income in the period 
in which they arise.

3.07 Foreign currency transactions

Employee's of the Company is entitled to get provident fund where the Company (employer)'s contribution is 
10% which is recognized under Income - tax law.

Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF)
The Company provides 80% of 5% of its profit before Tax after charging contribution to WPPF in accordance 
with the Bangladesh Labour Act 2006 as amendment 2013.

Remaining 20% of 5% is transferred equivalently to "Employee welfare fund" and "Bangladesh workers welfare 
foundation"

3.08 Employee benefits provision

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects 
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is 
recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a 
provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

Other Payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value.

3.09 Provisions, accrued expenses and other payables

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets include available for sale assets, held to maturity assets, assets held for trading, loans and 
receivable and cash and cash equivalent.

Financial liabilities include borrowings, others financing and bank loan and accounts payables.

Recognition
An entity recognizes a financial assets or liabilities in its statement of financial position when, and only when, 
the entity becomes a party to the contractual provision of the instrument.

3.10 Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

(a) Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate.
(b) Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical costs in a foreign
      currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
(c) Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency is
      translated using the exchange rate at the date when the fair value is  determined.
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No geographical segment reporting is applicable for the Company as required by BFRS 8: "Operating 
Segments", as the Company operates in a single geographical area.

3.11 Operating Segments

The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of BAS-7: Statement of 
Cash Flows. The cash generating from operating activities has been reported using the Direct Method as 
prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987 and as the benchmark treatment of BAS-7 whereby major 
classes of gross cash receipts and gross cash payments from operating activities are disclosed.

3.12 Statement of cash flows

As per Bangladesh Accounting Standards BAS-24: 'Related Party Disclosures', parties are considered to be 
related if one of the parties has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the 
other party in making financial and operating decisions. The Company carried out transactions in the ordinary 
course of business on an arm's length basis at commercial rates with its related parties. Related party disclosures 
have been given in notes-36 in financial statements. 

3.13 Related party disclosures
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Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the income 
statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized 
in equity.

3.14 Income tax

Current tax expense has been recognized on the basis of the Finance Act 2015 and Income Tax Ordinance 1984.
3.14.1 Current tax  

Deferred tax is calculated using the carrying amount and tax base of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax arises 
due to temporary difference deductible or taxable for the events or transactions recognized in the 
comprehensive income statement. A temporary difference is the difference between the tax base of an asset or 
liability and its carrying amount / reported amount in the statement of financial position. Deferred tax asset or 
liability is the amount of income tax recoverable or payable in future periods recognized in the current period. 
The deferred tax asset / income or liability / expense do not create a legal recoverability / liability to and from 
the income tax authority. Deferred tax also arises due to revaluation of property, plant and equipment. The 
resulting impact of deferred tax assets / liabilities on revaluation surplus is included in the statement of Profit 
or Loss and other comprehensive income.

3.14.2 Deferred tax

A Contingent asset is disclosed when it is a possible asset that arises from the past events and whose existence 
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the entity.

3.15 Contingent assets and liabilities
3.15.1 Contingent assets

A contingent liability is disclosed when it is a possible obligation that arises from the past events and whose 
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the entity.

The Company has no contingent assets or liabilities which require disclosures under BAS-37. Contingent assets 
and contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. 

A contingent assets is disclosed as per BAS-37, where an inflow of or economic benefits is probable. A 
contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is 
remote.

3.15.2 Contingent liabilities

The accounting year of Orion Pharma Limited was for the period from January to December. To comply 
uniform year ending of all companies (except financial institutions) as on 30 June on the basis of amended law 
by section 2(35) of Income Tax Ordinance 1984 and Financial Act 2015, the Board of Directors of Orion Pharma 
Limited has decided to close the accounts as on 30 June. Therefore, these accounts have been prepared for the 
period from 1 January 2015 to 30 June 2016 (for eighteen months). Comparative figures have been presented for 
the period of 12 (twelve) months.

3.16 Adjusting of Accounting Period based on Finance Act 2015

Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of the previous year for all numerical information in the 
current financial statement. Narrative and descriptive information for comparative information have also been 
disclosed whenever it is relevant for understanding of current year's financial statements.

3.17 Comparative information

i) Comparative figures have been re-arranged where considered necessary to ensure better comparability with 
the current period without causing any impact on the profit and value of assets and liabilities as reported in the 
financial statements.

ii)  Figures for the year 2014 have been rearranged wherever considered necessary to ensure comparability with 
the current year.

4.00 General Information
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77,120,287

81,246,000
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Face value
in BDT

of total
holding

Face value
in BDT

of total
holding

Face value
in BDT

of total
holding

Face value
in BDT

of total
holding

100,000 0.10
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There was capital expenditure contracted but not incurred or provided as o 30.06.16 and material capital 
expenditure authorized by the board.         

38.01 Capital expenditure commitment

There is no claim against  the Company not acknowledged as debt as on 30.06.16
38.02 Claims not acknowledged

The Board of Directors take the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements.
38.04 Director's responsibility statements

Amounts appearing in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest Taka and, wherever 
considered necessary.       

38.06  Rounding off

The fianancial statements of the company placed before the board for adoption as on 10 Novenber 2016.
38.07 Authorization for issue of the financial  statements

The Board of Directors meeting held on 10 November 2016 had recommended  15% cash dividend  for the 
period ended 30 June 2016 for placement  before the Shareholder's for approval at AGM of the company. There 
is no material events after the reporting date that are not adjusting events came to management attention which 
may be needful for the stakeholders. 

38.08 Events after the reporting period

i) During the period, there were 1,688 employees employed for the full year and 1,842 employees  less than the 
full period at a remuneration of Taka  3,000 per month and above.         
          
 ii) At the end of the period, there were 2,223 employees in the Company. 

38.05  Employee details

There is no credit facilities available to the Company but not availed of as on  30.06.16 under any contract, other 
than trade credit available in the ordinary course of business. 

38.03 Credit facilities not availed

37. Production capacity

38. General         

Sd/-
Managing Director

Sd/-
Director

Sd/-
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/-
Company Secretary
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The  redeemable preference share bearing interest @ 15% per annum were issued by Agrani Bank. As per 
BAS 32: "Financial Instruments: Presentation" the substance of a financial instrument rather than its legal 
form governs its classification on the entity’s financial statements. Accordingly, the redeemable preference 
shares which, in substance, meet the conditions of a financial liability, have been classified as liabilities in 
the financial statements.  
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Orion Power Megnaghat Ltd. has established its electricity generating plant on government land 
and assumed that after the contract period it may have to remove from the land. The company has 
recognised a provision for decommission obligations associated the electricity generating facility. In 
determine the fair value of the provision, assumptions and estimates are made in relation to 
discount rates, the expected cost to dismantle and remove the plant from the site and the expected 
timing of those costs. The carrying amount of the provision as at June 30, 2016 was BDT 
143,405,563. 
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The Syndicated loan bearing interest @ 15% per annum and repayable in 60 equated monthly installments 
starting from August 21, 2011.               
 The loans from banks are secured first ranking fixed charge over land, buildings and civil constructions, plant 
& machineries of the Company, a first ranking floating charge over the stocks, receivables, revenue/sale 
proceeds, proceeds of accounts, insurance proceeds in favour of the term loan lenders on pari passu and pro rata 
basis. The Company has also assigned benefits under all insurance policies on pari passu basis to the lenders.

The loans are also secured by personal guarantee of all directors of the Company and lien of initial paid up 
capital of the Promoters of the Company. 

The sponsors have also given an undertaking to retain the majority share of the project during the tenor of the 
loan, to be in control of the management of the Company and to inject necessary equity fund to finance any cost 
overrun of the project and to maintain all the covenants unless otherwise mutually agreed between the lenders 
and the Company.

Working capital loan under syndicatation loan arrangement bearing interest @ 15.5% per annum are repayable 
in 43 equated monthly installments starting from November 08, 2012.

Working capital loan
Agrani Bank Limited  - Principal Branch

Less: Current Portion
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Subsidiary Profile

ORION POWER MEGHNAGHAT LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Dear Stakeholders,

Reference to the provisions of Section 184 of the Companies Act 1994, and IAS codes, as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB), it is a pleasure and privilege on the part of the Board of Directors to 
submit the Directors; Report to the Shareholders together with the audited financial statements containing only 
Statement of Financial Position, Comprehensive Income, Change of Equity and Cash Flows for the 9 months period 
ended on June 30, 2016 at this annual meeting.

Operations 
The company, which was incorporated on June 30, 2010 as "IEL Consortium and Associates Ltd.", changed the name to 
"Orion Power Meghnaghat Limited" (OPML) on January 18, 2012. OPML has completed implementation of a 100 MW 
HFO Power based plant on quick rental basis in Meghnaghat, Dhaka and has been in commercial operation since May 08, 
2011. It has been in profitable operations all over the years till date. Orion Pharma Ltd. holds 95% of equity share of this 
company.

Financial Position & Performance
The summary of the comparative analysis of results of 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

Shareholding Structure
The present shareholding pattern of the company is as follows:

Revenue
Net Profit Before Tax
Net Profit after Tax
Total assets
Shareholders' Equity 
Earnings per Share
Net Asset Value per Share

2,827,092,543
309,643,844
309,643,844

6,592,621,897
2,948,776,259

3.10
29.49

4,260,562,374
404,093,012
404,093,012

7,456,663,037
2,639,132,415

4.04
26.39

9 months upto Jun 30 2016 12 months upto Sep 30 2015
(Restated)

Amount in BDT

Orion Pharma Limited
Integral Energy Limited
Jafflong Tea Company Limited
Mr. Mohammad Obaidul Karim  
Mr. Salman Obaidul Karim
Mrs. Arzuda Karim
Mrs. Nudrat S Karim
Haarhuis Genertoren B.V.

95,000,000
3,000,000

500,000
500,000
500,000
350,000
100,000
50,000

100,000,000

95.00
3.00
0.50
0.50
0.50
0.35
0.10
0.05

100.00

Shareholders' Name No. of Shares Held % of Holding
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Board of Directors
The following persons are the members of the Board of Directors of the Company:

Mr. Mohammad Obaidul Karim ………………………………………… Chairman 
Mr. Salman Obaidul Karim ………………………………………………  Managing Director
Mrs. Arzuda Karim ………………………………………………………   Director
Mrs. Nudrat S Karim ……………………………………………………… Director
Mr. Golam Mohiuddin …………………………………………………… Nominated Director
 
Appointment of Auditors
The Auditor's, S. F. Ahmed & Co., Chartered Accountants, who were appointed as the statutory auditor of the Company 
in the last Annual General Meeting, will retire in the ensuring AGM and have confirmed their eligibility and willingness 
to accept their office for the forthcoming financial year, if re-appointed.

Acknowledgement
The Board of Directors thankfully acknowledge the contribution made and support & co-operation given by the Officers, 
Workers, Customers, Creditors, Banks, Insurance Companies, Utility Providers, and the Government in particular and 
look forward to a bright future for all of us.

                Sd/-
Mohammad Obaidul Karim  
Chairman 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Shareholders of Orion Power Meghnaghat Ltd.
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Orion Power Meghnaghat Ltd., which comprise the statement 
of financial position as at 30 June 2016 and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the period then ended and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), the Companies Act 1994 and other applicable laws and regulations in 
Bangladesh. The management also responsible for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSA). Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Orion Power 
Meghnaghat Ltd. as at 30 June 2016, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the period then ended in 
accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards and comply with the Companies Act, 1994 and other 
applicable laws and regulations in Bangladesh.

We also report that:
a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary 

for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;
b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far as it appeared 

from our examination of these books;
c) the company's statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income dealt 

with by the report are in agreement with the books of account and returns; and
  d) the expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the company's business.

House 51 (2nd Floor)
Road 9, Block F,
Banani, Dhaka 1213,
Bangladesh

Telephone : (88-02) 9894346, 9870957,
    09610998048
Fax :  (88-02) 8825135
E-mail :  sfaco@dhaka.net
sfali@connectbd.com
sfacoali@btcl.net.bd

Dated, Dhaka;
16 August 2016

Sd/-
S. F. Ahmed & Co.

Chartered Accountants

S F AHMED & CO.
C H A R T E R E D  A C C O U N T A N T S

. . . S i n c e  1 9 5 8
BANGLADESH
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ORION POWER MEGHNAGHAT LTD.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2016

Dated, Dhaka;
16 August 2016

Sd/-
S. F. Ahmed & Co.

Chartered Accountants

The annexed notes form an integral part of this financial statement.

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date annexed.

Sd/-
Chairman

Sd/-
Managing Director

Sd/-
Company Secretary
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ORION POWER MEGHNAGHAT LTD.
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Dated, Dhaka;
16 August 2016

Sd/-
S. F. Ahmed & Co.

Chartered Accountants

The annexed notes form an integral part of this financial statement.

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date annexed.

Sd/-
Chairman

Sd/-
Managing Director

Sd/-
Company Secretary

Total comprehensive income for the Period
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ORION POWER MEGHNAGHAT LTD.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AS AT 30 JUNE 2016    
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ORION POWER MEGHNAGHAT LTD.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
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Orion Power Meghnaghat Ltd. was incorporated on June 30, 2010 as "IEL Consortium and Associates Ltd."  a public 
limited in Bangladesh  and obtained the certificate of commencement of business on June 30, 2010. On January 18, 
2012, the name of the company has been changed to Orion Power Meghnaghat Ltd. The registered office of the 
company is at 153-154, Tejgaon Industrial Area, Dhaka-1208, Bangladesh. 

The Company has set up a 100 MW HFO Power Plant on quick rental basis in Meghnaghat, Dhaka with 
machineries and equipments supplied by Wartsila Finland OY for generation and supply of electricity. The 
Company has signed the contract with Bangladesh Power Development Board (hereinafter referred as BPDB) 
acting as an off taker to supply power to them solely under the contract No. 09755 executed on June 30, 2010. 
According to the said Contract, the Government will purchase the power for a period of 5 years commencing 
from May 08, 2011.As per memo no. 1418- BPDB (Sectt)/ Dev- 175/2009, dated 21 May 2006, OPML received 
permission to continue operation until the signing of the amended agreement is signed. 

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1994 
and other relevant local laws and regulations, and in accordance with the  Bangladesh Financial Reporting 
Standards (BFRSs) and Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BASs) adopted by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) .

ORION POWER MEGHNAGHAT LTD.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT AND FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

1. Corporate information

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements

1.1 Nature of business

2.1 Reporting framework and compliance thereof

Measurement is the process of determining the monetary amounts at which the elements of the financial 
statements are to be recognized and carried in the statement of financial position and profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income. The measurement basis adopted by the company is historical cost except for land, 
buildings & civil constructions and plant and machinery which are stated at fair value. Under the historical 
cost, assets are recorded at the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the consideration 
given to acquire them at the time of their acquisition. Liabilities are recorded at the amount of proceeds 
received in exchange for the obligation.    

2.2 Measurement of the elements of financial statements     

The functional and presentation currency of the Company is Bangladeshi Taka (BDT). The Company earns its 
revenues in United State Dollars (US$), however, all other incomes/expenses and transactions are in 
Bangladesh Taka (BDT) and the competitive forces and regulations of Bangladesh determine the sale prices of 
its goods and services. Further, the entire funds from financing activities are generated in BDT and the receipts 
from operating activities are retained in BDT. 

2.3 Functional and presentation currency     
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When preparing financial statements, management shall make an assessment of an entity's ability to continue 
as a going concern. The company prepares its financial statements on a going concern basis as the company 
has adequate resources to continue its operation for the foreseeable future and management does not intend to 
liquidate the entity or to cease trading, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

2.4 Going concern

The company prepares its financial statements, except for cash flow information, using the accrual basis of 
accounting. When the accrual basis of accounting is used, an entity recognizes items as assets, liabilities, 
equity, income and expenses (the elements of financial statements) when they satisfy the definitions and 
recognition criteria for those elements in the Framework.

2.5 Accrual basis of accounting

The company presents separately each material class of similar items and items of a dissimilar nature or 
function unless they are immaterial. Financial statements result from processing large numbers of transactions 
or other events that are aggregated into classes according to their nature or function.

2.6 Materiality and aggregation

The company does not offset assets and liabilities or income and expenses, unless required or permitted by a 
BFRS.

2.7 Offsetting

The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under `Direct Method' in accordance with the requirements of   
BAS 7: Statement of Cash Flows.

2.8 Statement of cash flows

The Financial period of the company covers nine months period from 01 October 2015 to 30 June 2016.

2.9 Reporting period      

Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of the one year period from 01 October 2014 to 30 
September 2015for all numeric information in the financial statements and also the narrative and descriptive 
information where it is relevant for understanding of the current year's financial statements.

Figures for the period ended on 30 September 2015 have been rearranged wherever considered necessary to 
ensure comparability with the current period.

2.10 Comparative information and rearrangement thereof

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies 
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and for contingent assets and liabilities 
that require disclosure, during and at the date of the financial statements.

Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 
ongoing basis. Revisions of accounting estimates are given prospective effect in the financial statements as 
required by   BAS 8: "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors".

2.11 Use of estimates and judgments 



w w w . o r i o n p h a r m a b d . c o m

203Orion Pharma Ltd.
Integrated Annual Report '16

The accounting policies set out below have been applied for the period presented in these financial statements.

Recognition and measurement      

An item shall be recognized as property, plant and equipment if, and only it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
     
Property, plant and equipment were initially stated at cost and subsequently buildings & civil constructions 
and plant & machineries were revalued and shown at fair value in 2011, since then the assets were depreciated 
from the revalued amount.All property, plant and equipment are presented, net of accumulated depreciation 
and/or accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment 
comprises its purchase price, import duties and non-refundable taxes, after deducting trade discount and 
rebates, and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to 
be capable of operating in the intended manner. The cost also includes the cost of replacing part of the 
property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term debt availed for the 
construction/Implementation of the PPE, if the recognition criteria are met.
        
 Subsequent costs      
        
When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the company 
recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. 
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and 
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repairs and maintenance costs are 
recognized in the income statement as incurred.

Revaluation     
 
Valuations are performed at specific intervals to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ 
materially from its carrying amount. On each reporting date, management assesses the fair value of the assets 
to ensure that fair value of revalued assets does not differ materially from its carrying amount. At 31 December 
2011, the company made revaluation of its Building & Civil Constructions and Plant and Machineries by Syful 
Shamsul Alam & Co., Chartered Accountants to reflect fair value thereof in terms of depreciated current cost.
 
Any revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is recorded in other comprehensive income and 
hence, credited to the revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment in equity, except to the extent that 
it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognized in the income statement, in which 
case, the increase is recognized in the income statement. A revaluation deficit is recognized in the income 
statement, except to the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset recognized in the asset 
revaluation reserve.

A transfer from the revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment to retained earnings is made for the 
difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the assets and depreciation based 
on the asset's original cost on each reporting date. Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation 
date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued 
amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is 
transferred to the retained earnings.

3. Significant accounting policies 

3.1 Property, plant and equipment (PPE)     
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Depreciation      
        
Depreciation of an asset begins when it's get ready for use. Depreciation is charged on all property plant and 
equipment other than land and land developments, on a straight line basis over the expected economic lives as 
follows:

Impairment       
        
At each year end, the company assesses whether there is any indication that the carrying amount of an asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating 
units (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. An impairment loss is recognized as an expense in 
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in accordance with the provision of 
Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS)- 36 unless the asset is revalued in accordance with BAS 16; in this 
case, the impairment is also recognized in other comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous 
revaluation. No such assets have been impaired during the year and for this reason no provision has been 
made for impairment of assets.

An assessment is made at each reporting date whether there is any indication that previously recognized 
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the company estimates 
the assets or CGUs recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has 
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment 
loss was recognized. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation 
increase.

Retirements and disposals      
        
An asset is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use and 
subsequent disposal. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an asset is determined as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized as gain or 
loss from disposal of asset under other income in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income. 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the company at the functional currency spot rates 
on the date on which the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency 
spot rate of exchange at the reporting date. All differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary 
items are taken to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
        
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a 
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.

3.2 Foreign currency transactions      

Group of PPE
Building & civil construction
Vehicles
Office equipments
Furniture & fixtures
Plant & machineries

Expected economic life
20 years
5 years
5 years

6  to 7 years
2 to 20 years
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Inventories stated at lower of cost and net realizable value as per BAS-2: Inventories. Costs incurred in 
bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for on a First in First out (FIFO) 
basis. Costs comprise of expenditure incurred in the normal course of business in bringing out such 
inventories to its location and conditions.       

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

3.3 Inventories      

Provisions and accrued expenses are recognized in the financial statements in line with the Bangladesh 
Accounting Standard (BAS) 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets" when

- the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event.
- it is probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation.
- a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Other payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value.

3.4 Provisions, accrued expenses and other payables   

Orion Power Megnaghat Ltd. has established its electricity generating plant in government land and assumed 
that after the contract period it may have to remove the plant from the land. The company has recognized a 
provision for decommission obligations associated the electricity generating facility. In determine the fair 
value of the provision, assumptions and estimates are made in relation to discount rates, the expected cost to 
dismantle and remove the plant from the site and the expected timing of those costs. The caring amount of the 
provision as at June 30, 2016 was BDT 143,405,563.

3.5 Provision for decommissioning costs     

Revenue is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income upon supply of 
electricity, quantum of which is determined by survey of meter reading. Revenue is measured at fair value of 
consideration received or receivable. Revenue under Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) comprises capacity 
payments and energy payments. Capacity payments are recognized according to the terms set out in the PPA. 
Energy payments are calculated based on electricity delivered to BPDB.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and 
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at 
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of 
payment. 

Current tax
      
As per sec. 52N of Income Tax Ordinance 1984, 4% tax is payable at the time of rental received as TDS which 
shall be treated final discharge of tax liability. Bangladesh Power Development Board (BPDB) shall be 
responsible for payment of income taxes, VAT, duties, levies, all other charges imposed or incurred inside 
Bangladesh on any payment made by BPDB to Orion Power Meghnaghat Ltd. or the importation (on a re 
exportable basis) of any plant /equipment (excluding consumable) and /or spare parts before commercial 
operation date and /or replacement equipment and spare parts for operation throughout the contract period 
as per contract No.09756 article-17. As 4% TDS is directly paid by BPDB on the invoice amount. So tax amount 
is not recognized either income or expenses in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

3.6 Revenue recognition      

3.7 Taxation      
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In compliance with the requirement of BAS-23 (borrowing cost), borrowing cost that are directly attributable to 
the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset form part of the cost of the asset and, therefore 
capitalized. Other borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income as finance cost. 

Deferred tax      
        
Since 4% Tax deducted at source is the final discharge of tax liability and there is no deductible or taxable 
temporary difference, so deferred tax is not recognized and considered.

3.8 Borrowing cost      

Finance costs comprise interest on long term borrowings, interest on redeemable preference shares and bank 
charges. All finance costs are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 
except to the extent that are capitalized as per BAS - 23.

3.9 Finance cost      

3.10  Financial instrument      

Financial Instrument within the scope of BAS 39: "Recognition and Measurement" the company initially 
recognizes receivables and deposits on the date that they are originated.  All other financial assets are 
recognized initially on the date at which company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
transaction. All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of 
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.
        
The company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a 
group of financial assets is impaired. 
 
Financial assets carried in the statement of financial position include cash and cash equivalents, trade and 
other receivables, advance and deposits.

Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash in hand and with banks on current and deposit accounts which are 
held and available for use by the company without any restriction. There is insignificant risk of change in 
value of the same.

Financial assets 

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

Trade receivables consist of unpaid bill amounts receivable from Bangladesh Power Development Board 
(BPDB). Invoice is raised on a monthly basis and trade receivable is recognized after netting of the energy 
payment for Hyper Furnace Oil (HFO) deducted by BPDB as per contract. 

(b) Trade receivables

As per BAS 39 "Financial Instrument: Recognition and Measurement" the company initially recognizes debt 
securities issued and subordinated liabilities on the date that they are originated. All other financial liabilities 
are recognized initially on the transaction date at which company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the liability. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of loans 
and borrowings, directly attributable transaction costs.
 
The company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or 
expired.
        
 Financial liabilities include loans and borrowings, accounts payable and other payables.

Financial liabilities 
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Principal amounts of the loans and borrowings are stated at their amortized cost. Borrowings repayable after 
twelve months from the date of statement of financial position are classified as non-current liabilities whereas 
the portion of borrowings repayable within twelve months from the date of statement of financial position, 
unpaid interest and other charges are classified as current liabilities.

(a) Loans and borrowings

The company recognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations arising from past events are 
certain and the settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow of resources from the entity.

(b) Trade payables      

The company had issued redeemable preference shares in November 2011. As per BAS 32: Financial 
Instruments: Presentation, the substance of a financial instrument rather than its legal form governs its 
classification on the entity's financial statements. Accordingly, the redeemable preference shares which, in 
substance, meet the conditions of a financial liability have been classified as liabilities in these financial 
statements.

The company was not a party to any derivative contract that needs to disclose as per IFRS-7 "Financial 
Instruments: Disclosure".

(c) Redeemable preference share     

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the period attributable to ordinary 
equity holders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year (Note-21).

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary 
shares. However, dilution of EPS is not applicable for these financial statements as there were no potential 
dilutive ordinary shares during the relevant periods.

3.12 Earnings per share

No geographical and operational segment reporting is applicable for the company as required by BFRS 8 
"Operating Segment", as the company operates in single operation in a single geographical area.

3.11 Segment reporting     

Certain comparative amounts in the prior period's financial statements have been restated by giving 
retrospective effect where necessary as per BAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and 
Error'.

3.13  Prior period adjustments

There have not been any significant events since the reporting date to the date of issue of the financial 
statements, which could affect the figures stated in the financial statements. 

3.14 Events after reporting date      

Contingencies arising from claim, litigation assessment, fines, penalties etc. are recorded when it is probable 
that a liability has been incurred and the amount can reasonably be measured.

Capital commitments              
The Company has no commitment of capital expenditure as at June 30, 2016.
        
Guarantees              
The company has given a bank guarantee of BDT 22,430,000 (BDT 22,430,000; 2015) to BPDB.

3.15 Commitments and contingencies     
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Agency fee on syndication loan                751,488

222,803,586 
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25 Capacity utilization

During the period, there were 122 employees employed for the full year and  the end of the period, there were 
122 employees in the company with remuneration of BDT 4,800 per month and above.      

26  Employee details      

Amounts appearing in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest BDT.

27  Rounding off       

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 16 August 2016.

28 Authorisation of  financial statements to issue      

Licensed
capacity

100 MW 106.80 MW Average 55.00%
Max. 79%

Average 49.33.%
Max. 63.77%

Installed
capacity

Plant factor
2016

(% on licensed 
capacity)

Plant factor
2015

(% on licensed 
capacity)

Sd/-
Chairman

Sd/-
Managing Director

Sd/-
Company Secretary
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Subsidiary Profile

DUTCH BANGLA POWER & ASSOCIATES LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Dear Stakeholders,

Reference to the provisions of Section 184 of the Companies Act 1994, and IAS codes, as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB), it is a pleasure and privilege on the part of the Board of Directors to 
submit the Directors; Report to the Shareholders together with the audited financial statements containing only 
Statement of Financial Position, Comprehensive Income, Change of Equity and Cash Flows for the 9 months period 
ended on June 30, 2016 at this annual meeting.

Operations
The company has set up a 100 MW HFO power plant on quick rental basis and commenced its sale of power to the 
Government of Bangladesh from July 21, 2011 for a period of 5 years. Now, the term to supply electricity is to be 
extended for next five years. The plant has been in profitable operations all over the years till date. Orion Pharma Ltd. 
holds 67% of equity share of this company.

Financial Position & Performance
The financial position and operational performance during the year 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

Shareholding Structure
The present shareholding pattern of the company is as follows:

Revenue
Net Profit Before Tax
Net Profit after Tax
Total assets
Shareholders' Equity 
Earnings per Share
Net Asset Value per Share

2,726,994,984
184,599,770
184,599,770

6,628,615,860
2,092,676,392

18.46
209.27

4,426,583,466
267,039,198
267,039,198

7,264,131,083
1,908,076,622

26.70
190.81

9 months upto Jun 30 2016 12 months upto Sep 30 2015
(Restated)

Amount in BDT

Orion Pharma Limited
Mr. Mohammad Obaidul Karim  
Mr. Salman Obaidul Karim
Mrs. Nudrat S Karim
Shenzen Nanshan Power Co. Ltd.
Mrs. Arzuda Karim
Jamal Uddin Ahmed Chowdhury

6,700,000
100,000

3,087,500
50,000
50,000
10,000
2,500

10,000,000

67.00
1.00

30.88
0.50
0.50
0.10
0.03

100.00

Shareholders' Name No. of Shares Held % of Holding
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Subsidiary Profile

Board of Directors
The following persons are the members of the Board of Directors of the Company:
     
Mr. Mohammad Obaidul Karim …………………………………… Chairman 
Mr. Salman Obaidul Karim …………………………………………  Managing Director
Mrs. Arzuda Karim …………………………………………………   Nominated Director
Mrs. Nudrat S Karim ………………………………………………… Director
Mr. Golam Mohiuddin ………………………………………………  Nominated Director 

Appointment of Auditors
The Auditor's, S. F. Ahmed & Co., Chartered Accountants, who were appointed as the statutory auditor of the Company 
in the last Annual General Meeting, will retire in the ensuring AGM and have confirmed their eligibility and willingness 
to accept their office for the forthcoming financial year, if re-appointed.

Acknowledgement
The Board of Directors thankfully acknowledge the contribution made and support & co-operation given by the Officers, 
Workers, Customers, Creditors, Banks, Insurance Companies, Utility Providers, and the Government in particular and 
look forward to a bright future for all of us.

                Sd/-
Mohammad Obaidul Karim  
Chairman 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Shareholders of Dutch Bangla Power and Associates Ltd.
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Dutch Bangla Power and Associates Ltd., which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2016 and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the period then ended and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), the Companies Act 1994 and other applicable laws and regulations in 
Bangladesh. The management also responsible for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSA). Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Dutch Bangla 
Power and Associates Ltd. as at 30 June 2016, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the period then ended 
in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards and comply with the Companies Act, 1994 and other 
applicable laws and regulations in Bangladesh.

We also report that:
a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary 

for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;
b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far as it appeared from 

 our examination of these books;
c)  the company's statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income dealt 

 with by the report are in agreement with the books of account and returns; and
d) the expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the company's business.

House 51 (2nd Floor)
Road 9, Block F,
Banani, Dhaka 1213,
Bangladesh

Dated, Dhaka;
16 August 2016

Sd/-
S. F. Ahmed & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Telephone  : (88-02) 9894346, 9870957,
     9894026,9872584
Fax  :  (88-02) 9845135
E-mail  :  sfaco@dhaka.net
sfali@connectbd.com
ahmeds@bol-online.com 

S F AHMED & CO.
C H A R T E R E D  A C C O U N T A N T S

. . . S i n c e  1 9 5 8
BANGLADESH
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Dutch Bangla Power and Associates Ltd.
Statement of Financial Position

As At 30 June 2016

Dated, Dhaka;

16 August 2016

Sd/-
S. F. Ahmed & Co.

Chartered Accountants

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date annexed.

Sd/-
Chairman

Sd/-
Managing Director

Sd/-
Company Secretary
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Dutch Bangla Power and Associates Ltd.
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For The Period Ended 30 June 2016        

Dated, Dhaka;

16 August 2016

Sd/-
S. F. Ahmed & Co.

Chartered Accountants

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date annexed.

Sd/-
Chairman

Sd/-
Managing Director

Sd/-
Company Secretary
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Dutch Bangla Power and Associates Ltd.
Statement of Changes In Equity

For The Period Ended 30 June 2016    
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Dutch Bangla Power and Associates Ltd.
Statement of Cash Flows

For The Period Ended 30 June 2016
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Dutch Bangla Power and Associates Ltd. was incorporated on 01 July 2010 as a public limited company in Bangladesh 
and obtained the certificate of commencement of business under the Companies Act 1994, on the same date. The 
registered office of the company is at Orion House, 153-154 Tejgaon,Dhaka.

The company has set up a 100 MW HFO Power Plant on quick rental basis in Siddirgoanj, Dhaka with 
machineries and equipments supplied by Wartsila Finland OY for generation and supply of electricity. The 
company has signed the contract with Bangladesh Power Development Board (hereinafter referred as BPDB) 
acting as an off taker to supply power to them solely under the contract No. 09756 executed on July 01, 2010. 
According to the said contract, the Government will purchase the power for a period of 5 years commencing 
from July 21, 2011.As per memo no. 2148- BPDB (Sectt)/ Dev- 175/2009 dated 28 July 2016,  DBPAL received 
permission to continue operation until the signing of the amended agreement is signed.

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1994 
and other relevant local laws and regulations, and in accordance with the  Bangladesh Financial Reporting 
Standards (BFRSs) and Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BASs) adopted by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB).

Dutch Bangla Power and Associates Ltd.
Notes To The Financial Statements

As At and For The Year Ended 30 June 2016

1. Corporate information

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements

1.1 Nature of business

2.1. Reporting framework and compliance thereof

Measurement is the process of determining the monetary amounts at which the elements of the financial 
statements are to be recognized and carried in the statement of financial position and profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income. The measurement basis adopted by the company is historical cost except for land, 
buildings & civil constructions and plant and machinery which are stated at fair value. Under the historical 
cost, assets are recorded at the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the consideration 
given to acquire them at the time of their acquisition. Liabilities are recorded at the amount of proceeds 
received in exchange for the obligation.    

2.2 Measurement of the elements of financial statements     

The functional and presentation currency of the company is Bangladeshi Taka (BDT). The company earns its 
revenues in United State Dollars (US$), however, all other incomes/expenses and transactions are in 
Bangladeshi Taka (BDT) and the competitive forces and regulations of Bangladesh determine the sale prices of 
its goods and services. Further, the entire funds from financing activities are generated in BDT and the receipts 
from operating activities are retained in BDT. 

2.3 Functional and presentation currency     
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When preparing financial statements, management shall make an assessment of an entity's ability to continue 
as a going concern. The company prepares its financial statements on a going concern basis as the company 
has adequate resources to continue its operation for the foreseeable future and management does not intend to 
liquidate the entity or to cease trading, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

2.4 Going concern

The company prepares its financial statements, except for cash flow information, using the accrual basis of 
accounting. When the accrual basis of accounting is used, an entity recognizes items as assets, liabilities, 
equity, income and expenses (the elements of financial statements) when they satisfy the definitions and 
recognition criteria for those elements in the Framework.

2.5 Accrual basis of accounting

The company presents separately each material class of similar items and items of a dissimilar nature or 
function unless they are immaterial. Financial statements result from processing large numbers of transactions 
or other events that are aggregated into classes according to their nature or function.

2.6 Materiality and aggregation

The company does not offset assets and liabilities or income and expenses, unless required or permitted by a 
BFRS.

2.7 Offsetting

The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under `Direct Method' in accordance with the requirements of   
BAS 7: Statement of Cash Flows.

2.8 Statement of cash flows

The Financial period of the company covers nine months period from 01 October 2015 to 30 June 2016.

2.9 Reporting period      

Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of the one year period from 01 October 2014 to 30 
September 2015 for all numeric information in the financial statements and also the narrative and descriptive 
information where it is relevant for understanding of the current year's financial statements.

Figures for the period ended on 30 September 2015 have been rearranged wherever considered necessary to 
ensure comparability with the current period.

2.10 Comparative information and rearrangement thereof

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS) 
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting 
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and for contingent assets and 
liabilities that require disclosure, during and at the date of the financial statements.

Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 
ongoing basis. Revisions of accounting estimates are given prospective effect in the financial statements as 
required by   BAS 8: "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors".

2.11 Use of estimates and judgments 
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The accounting policies set out below have been applied for the period presented in these financial statements.

Recognition and measurement      

An item shall be recognized as property, plant and equipment if, and only it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
 
Property, plant and equipment were initially stated at cost and subsequently buildings & civil constructions 
and plant & machineries were revalued and shown at fair value in 2011, since then the assets were depreciated 
from the revalued amount.       

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, import duties and non-
refundable taxes, after deducting trade discount and rebates, and any costs directly attributable to bringing the 
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the intended manner. The cost 
also includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-
term debt availed for the construction/Implementation of the PPE, if the recognition criteria are met.
        
 Subsequent costs      
        
When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company 
recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. 
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and 
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are 
recognized in the income statement as incurred.

Revaluation     
 
Valuations are performed at specific intervals to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ 
materially from its carrying amount. On each reporting date, management assess the fair value of the assets to 
ensure that fair value of revalued assets does not differ materially from its carrying amount. At 31 December 
2011, the Company made revaluation of it's Land and Land developments, Buildings and Plant and Machinery 
by Syful Shamsul Alam & Co., Chartered Accountants to reflect fair value thereof in terms of Depreciated 
current cost.

Any revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is recorded in the statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income and hence, credited to the revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 
in equity, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognized in 
the income statement, in which case, the increase is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income. A revaluation deficit is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, except to the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset recognized in 
the asset revaluation reserve.

A transfer from the revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment to retained earnings is made for the 
difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the assets and depreciation based 
on the asset's original cost on each reporting date. Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation 
date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued 
amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is 
transferred to the retained earnings.

3. Significant accounting policies 

3.1 Property, plant and equipment (PPE)     
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Depreciation      
        
Depreciation of an asset begins when it's get ready for use. Depreciation is charged on all property plant and 
equipment other than land and land developments, on a straight line basis over the expected economic lives as 
follows:

Impairment               
At each year end, the company assesses whether there is any indication that the carrying amount of an asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating 
units (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. An impairment loss is recognized as an expense in 
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in accordance with the provision of 
Bangladesh Accounting Standards BAS 36 unless the asset is revalued in accordance with BAS 16, in this case, 
the impairment is also recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income up to the 
amount of any previous revaluation. No such assets have been impaired during the year and for this reason no 
provision has been made for impairment of assets. 
An assessment is made at each reporting date whether there is any indication that previously recognized 
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company 
estimates the assets or CGUs recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if 
there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last 
impairment loss was recognized. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as 
a revaluation increase.

Retirements and disposals      
        
An asset is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use and 
subsequent disposal. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an asset is determined as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized as gain or 
loss from disposal of asset under other income in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income. 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the company at the functional currency spot rates 
on the date on which the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency 
spot rate of exchange at the reporting date. All differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary 
items are taken to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.     

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a 
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.

3.2 Foreign currency transactions      

Group of PPE
Building & Civil Construction
Vehicles
Office Equipments
Furniture & Fixtures
Plant & Machineries

Expected economic life
20 years
5 years
5 years

6  to 7 years
2 to 20 years
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Inventories stated at lower of cost and net realizable value as per BAS-2: Inventories. Costs incurred in 
bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for on a First in First out (FIFO) 
basis. Costs comprise of expenditure incurred in the normal course of business in bringing out such 
inventories to its location and conditions.       
        
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

3.3 Inventories      

Provisions and accrued expenses are recognized in the financial statements in line with the Bangladesh 
Accounting Standard (BAS) 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets" when

- the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event.
- it is probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation.
- a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Other Payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value.

3.4 Provisions, accrued expenses and other payables   

Revenue is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income upon supply of 
electricity, quantum of which is determined by survey of meter reading. Revenue is measured at fair value of 
consideration received or receivable. Revenue under Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) comprises capacity 
payments and energy payments. Capacity payments are recognized according to the terms set out in the PPA. 
Energy payments are calculated based on electricity delivered to BPDB.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and 
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at 
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of 
payment. 

Current tax
      
As per sec. 52N of Income Tax Ordinance 1984, 4% tax is payable at the time of rental received as TDS which 
shall be treated final discharge of tax liability. Bangladesh Power Development Board (BPDB) shall be 
responsible for payment of income taxes, VAT, duties, levies, all other charges imposed or incurred inside 
Bangladesh on any payment made by BPDB to Dutch-Bangla Power and Associates Ltd. or the importation (on 
a re exportable basis) of any plant /equipment (excluding consumable) and /or spare parts before Commercial 
Operation Date and /or replacement equipment and spare parts for operation throughout the contract period 
as per contract No.09756 article-17. As 4% TDS is directly paid by BPDB on the invoice amount. So tax amount 
is not recognized either income or expenses in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 
        
Deferred tax      
        
Since 4% Tax deducted at source is the final discharge of tax liability and there is no deductible or taxable 
temporary difference, so deferred tax is not recognized and considered.

3.5 Revenue Recognition      

3.6 Taxation      
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In compliance with the requirement of BAS-23 (borrowing cost), borrowing cost that are directly attributable to 
the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset form part of the cost of the asset and, therefore 
capitalized. Other borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income as finance cost. 

3.7 Borrowing cost      

Finance costs comprise interest on long term borrowings, dividend on preference shares and bank charges. All 
finance costs are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income except to the 
extent that are capitalized as per BAS - 23.

3.8 Finance cost      

3.9  Financial instrument      

Financial Instrument within the scope of BAS 39: "Recognition and Measurement" the company initially 
recognizes receivables and deposits on the date that they are originated.  All other financial assets are 
recognized initially on the date at which company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
transaction. All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of 
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.
        
The company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a 
group of financial assets is impaired. 
 
Financial assets carried in the statement of financial position include cash and cash equivalents, trade and 
other receivables, advance and deposits.

Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash on hand and with banks on current and deposit accounts which are 
held and available for use by the company without any restriction. There is insignificant risk of change in 
value of the same.

Financial assets 

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

Trade receivables consist of unpaid bill amounts receivable from Bangladesh Power Development Board 
(BPDB). Invoice is raised on a monthly basis and trade receivable is recognized after netting of the energy 
payment for Hyper Furnace Oil (HFO) deducted by BPDB as per contract. 

(b) Trade receivables

As per BAS 39 "Financial Instrument: Recognition and Measurement" the company initially recognizes debt 
securities issued and subordinated liabilities on the date that they are originated. All other financial liabilities 
are recognized initially on the transaction date at which company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the liability. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of loans 
and borrowings, directly attributable transaction costs.
 
The company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or 
expired.
         
 Financial liabilities include loans and borrowings, accounts payable and other payables.

Financial liabilities 
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Principal amounts of the loans and borrowings are stated at their amortized cost. Borrowings repayable after 
twelve months from the date of statement of financial position are classified as non-current liabilities whereas 
the portion of borrowings repayable within twelve months from the date of statement of financial position, 
unpaid interest and other charges are classified as current liabilities.

(a) Loans and borrowings

The Company recognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations arising from past events are 
certain and the settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow of resources from the entity.

(b) Trade payables      

The Company had issued redeemable preference shares in June 2011. As per BAS 32: Financial Instruments: 
Presentation, the substance of a financial instrument rather than its legal form governs its classification on the 
entity's financial statements. Accordingly, the redeemable preference shares which, in substance, meet the 
conditions of a financial liability have been classified as liabilities in these financial statements.

(c) Redeemable preference share     

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the period attributable to ordinary 
equity holders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year(Note-20).
 
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary 
shares. However, dilution of EPS is not applicable for these financial statements as there were no potential 
dilutive ordinary shares during the relevant periods.

3.11 Earnings per share

No geographical and operational segment reporting is applicable for the Company as required by BFRS 8 
"Operating Segment", as the Company operates in single operation in a single geographical area.

3.10 Segment reporting     

There have not been any significant events since the reporting date to the date of issue of the financial 
statements, which could affect the figures stated in the financial statements.

3.12 Events after reporting date      

Certain comparative amounts in the prior period's financial statements have been restated by giving 
retrospective effect where necessary as per BAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and 
Error'.

Capital commitments              
The Company has no commitment of capital expenditure as at June 30, 2016.
        
Guarantees              
The Company has given a bank guarantee of BDT 22,430,000 (BDT 22,430,000; 2015) to BPDB.

3.13  Prior period adjustments

Contingencies arising from claim, litigation assessment, fines, penalties etc. are recorded when it is probable 
that a liability has been incurred and the amount can reasonably be measured.

3.14 Commitments and contingencies     
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The company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The 
main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the company’s operations. The Company has trade 
receivables, and cash and bank balances that arrive directly from its operations.         
Financial instruments give rise to cash flow interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, other price risk, credit risk, 
and liquidity risk. Information on how these risks arise is set out below, as are the objectives, policies and 
processes agreed by the board for their management and the methods used to measure each risk.         
The company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The senior management ensures 
that the financial risk-taking activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and those financial 
risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with policies and risk appetite.         

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. As a policy, the Company has decided to obtain all its borrowings at 
fixed interest rates. Hence there is no exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates.         

Foreign currency risk         
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The company’s earnings and cash flows are significantly influenced by US dollars (USD) since USD is the 
currency in which the company’s sales are denominated. The financial position and results of the company can 
be affected significantly by movements in the BDT / USD exchange rates. Presently, the company does not 
hedge any exposure on account of foreign currency risk.

Credit risk         
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer 
contract, leading to a financial loss. The company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities 
(primarily for trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks, foreign 
exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables         
At present all output of the company is sold to a single customer and trade receivable as on the reporting dates 
represents amounts receivable from the said customer. The party is a Government owned undertaking and the 
management does not foresee any risk relating to the credit quality of the customer.         

The company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low irrespective of the fact 
that the company’s trade receivables are related to a single customer. The above conclusion has been made since 
the entire receivable is from BPDB which is a Government of Bangladesh undertaking.         

Financial instruments and cash deposits         
Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the company’s treasury department in accordance with the 
Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties. Counterparty 
credit limits are reviewed by the company’s Board of Directors on regular basis, and may be updated 
throughout the year subject to approval of the Board of Directors. The limits are set to minimize the 
concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through potential counterparty’s failure.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or 
at a reasonable price.
The company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient 
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring 
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the company's reputation. Typically, management ensures that it has 
sufficient cash and cash equivalent to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing of financial 
obligation through preparation of the cash forecast, prepared based on time line of payment of the financial 
obligation and accordingly arrange for sufficient liquidity/fund to make the expected payment within due date.
The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the  financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted 
payments.

22. Financial risk management objectives and policies

Long term
borrowings

Redeemable
preference share

Trade
payables

Accruals and
other payables  Total 

Amount repayable within 1 year            -               -      738,905,747   1,758,001,049    2,496,906,797
 1,539,032,671    500,000,000            -                -      2,039,032,671 Amount repayable within 2 to 5 years  
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24 Capacity utilization

During the period, there were 109 employees employed for the full year and  the end of the year with 
remuneration of BDT 4,800 per month and above. 

25  Employee details      

Amounts appearing in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest BDT. 

26  Rounding off       

 The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on  16 August 2016. 

27 Authorisation of  financial statements to issue      

Licensed
capacity

100 MW 106.80 MW Average 55.00%
Max. 69.00%

Average 55.81.%
Max. 76.03%

Installed
capacity

Plant factor
2016

(% on licensed 
capacity)

Plant factor
2015

(% on licensed 
capacity)

Sd/-
Chairman

Sd/-
Managing Director

Sd/-
Company Secretary



SAFA Criteria Checklist (General)
Items

Corporate Objectives, Values & Structure

Management Report/Commentary and analysis including Directors' Report/Chairman's
review/CEO's Review etc.

Appropriateness of Disclosure of accounting policies and general disclosure

Sustainability Reporting  

Page Reference

1. Vision and Mission

2. Overall Strategic Objectives

3, 37

43 - 44

3, 48 - 49

10 - 15, 38

26 - 32, 60, 73 - 741. A general review of the performance of the company

2. 

3. Core values and code of conduct/ethical principles

4. Profile of the Company

5. Director's profiles and their representation on Board
 of other companies & organizational chart

Description of the performance of the various 
activities/products/segments of the company & its 
group companies during the period under review

3. A brief summary of the business and other risks 
facing the organization and steps taken to 
effectively manage such risks

5. Information on how the company contributed to its 
responsibilities towards the staff (including health 
& safety)

4. A general review of the future prospects/outlook

6. Information on company's contribution to the
national exchequer and to the economy

1. Disclosure of adequete and properly worded 
accounting policies relevant to assets, liabilities, 
income and expenditure in line with best reporting 
standards

2. Any specific accounting policies

3. Impairment of assets

4. Changes in accounting policies/changes in
accounting estimates

5. Accounting policy on subsidiaries

6. Segment Information

2, 4 - 5, 7 - 9, 35 - 36, 41 - 42, 57 - 59

21- 25, 60, 73 - 74, 83 - 84, 114 - 120, 194, 218

75 - 80, 115

81 - 82, 86, 93

39, 99 - 108

33, 89 - 91, 120

109 - 111

49, 94 - 98

49, 94 - 98, 99 - 112

II - III

151 - 192

152 - 153

156

152

119, 151 - 152, 201 - 207, 225 - 231

1. Social responsibility initiatives (CSR)

2. Environment related initiatives

3. Environmental & Social obligations

4. Integrated reporting
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115, 172, 177

7. Any specific accounting policies

Comprehensive segment related information 
bifurcating segment revenue, segment results and 
segment capital employed

Availability of information regarding different 
segments and units of the entity as well as non-
segment entities/units

Segment revenue

Segment results

turnover

Operating profits

1. Disclosure of all contingencies and commitments

2. Comprehensive related party disclosures

3. Disclosures of remuneration and faclities provided
to Directors & CEO

4. Statement of Financial Position

5. Income statement

6. Statement of changes in equity

7. Disclosure of types of share capital

8. Statement of cash flow

9. Consolidated financial statement

1. BOD, Chairman and CEO

2. Audit committee, internal control & risk managemnet

3. Ethics & compliance

4. Remuneration and other committees of board

5. Human capital

6. Communication to shareholders & stakeholders

7. Management review & responsibility

9. Any other investor friendly information

8. Disclosure by Board of directors or Audit Committee
on evaluation of quarterly reports

10. Extent of compliance with the core IAS/IFRS or
equivalent National standards

11. Contents of Notes to accounts

Carrying amount of net segment assets

Financial statements (including formats)

Information about Corporate Governance

115, 172, 177

115, 158, 172, 177

115, 158, 172, 177

115, 158, 172, 177

115, 158, 172, 177

115, 158, 172, 177

115, 158, 172, 177

159, 207, 231

178 - 180, 216, 240

118, 174, 212, 237

143 - 144, 197, 221

145 - 146, 198, 222

147 - 148, 199, 223

166 - 167, 210, 235

149 - 150, 200, 224

143, 145, 147, 149

131, 152 - 192, 201 - 207, 225 - 231

106 - 192, 232 - 241, 208 - 217

10 - 18, 125 - 126

17 - 18, 77 - 80, 127 - 129

48 - 49

10, 17 - 18, 127 - 129

39, 99 - 101

I, II, 18, 20 - 25, 88

17, 25

118, 128

112 - 124, 60, 81, 83 - 84, 130, 132 - 139, 194 - 195, 218 - 219 
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1. Description of Risk management framework

2. Risk mitigation methodology

1. EPS

2. Net assets

3. Stock performance

4. Shareholders' funds

5. Return on Shareholders' fund

2. Shares held by Directors/Executive and relatives
of Directors/Executives
3. Redressal of investors complaints

1. Distribution of shareholdings

3. Disclosure of risk reporting

Risk Management & Control Environment

Stakeholders Information

Graphical/ Pictorial Data

1. Operating Performance

 Total revenue

 Operating profits

 Profit before tax

 Profit after tax

 EPS

2. Statement of financial position

 Shareholders fund

 PPE

 Net current assets

 Long term liabilities/current liabilities

Horizontal/vertical analysis

1. Gross profit ratio

2. Earning before Interest, Depreciation and Tax

3. P/E ratio

4. Current ratio

5. ROCE

6. Debt Equity Ratio

Ratios

79

77 - 78

75 - 77, 119

40, 122 - 123

122

123 - 124

31

31

31

31

30

30

30

30

30

30

30

30

30

30

30

29

29

29

29
29

29

92
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1 Government as taxes

2 Shareholders as dividend

3 Employees as bonus / remuneration

4 Retained by the entity

5 Market share information of products

6 EVA

Statement of value added and its distribution

Human Resource Acccounting

Additional Dislosures

33, 89 - 90, 120

89 - 90, 119

89 - 90

89 - 90, 119

57 - 58, 60 - 74

91

39

Business Model 45 - 47

50 - 51Our Stakeholders & Materiality Matrix

Value Chain 52

53Five Forces Analysis

SWOT Analysis 54

Information Technology 85

55 - 56PESTEL Analysis 
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SAFA Criteria Checklist (Integrated Reporting)

Items

1 Elements of an Integrated Report  

2. Responsibility for an Integrated Report

3. Other Qualitative Characteristics of an IntegratedReport

Summary checklist for Integrated Reporting   

Page Reference

1.1 Organizational overview and external environment

1.2 Governance

1.3 Stakeholder Identification/relationships and capitals

1.4 Business Model

1.5 Performance

1.6 Risks and opportunities

1.7 Strategy and resource allocation

1.8 Outlook

1.9 Basis of preparation and presentation

1.6 Risks and opportunities

3.1 Conciseness

3.2 Reliability and Completeness

3.3 Consistency and Comparability

3.4 Connectivity of Information

3.5 Materiality

3.6 Assurance on the Report

2 - 10, 37 - 38, 40, 48 - 74, 85, 100, 112, 181

10 - 18, 75 - 80, 114 - 139

39, 50 - 51, 57 - 58, 86, 94 - 112, 143 - 144
27, 39, 45 - 47, 50 - 51, 59 - 74, 83 - 85, 89 - 91, 94 - 112, 141 - 144 

21 - 25, 28 - 33, 50 - 51, 81, 86, 95 - 98, 114 - 117

75 - 82
43 - 47, 50 - 51

81, 86, 93

151 - 159, 201 - 207, 225 - 231

II - III, 88

43 - 44, 29, 132 - 139, 141 - 142, 196, 220

43 - 44, 29, 132 - 139, 141 - 142, 196, 220

43 - 44, 29, 132 - 139, 141 - 142, 196, 220

43 - 44, 29, 132 - 139, 141 - 142, 196, 220

43 - 44, 29, 132 - 139, 141 - 142, 196, 220

43 - 44, 29, 132 - 139, 141 - 142, 196, 220
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Annual General Meeting (AGM) is a mandatory annual meeting of shareholders. 
At the AGM, company presents its financial statements before the shareholders 
so that they can raise any queries regarding the financial position of the 
company. 

AGM

An associate company (or associate) in accounting and business valuation is a 
company in which another company owns a significant portion of voting shares, 
usually 20–50%. In this case, an owner does not consolidate the associate's 
financial statements. 

Associate Company

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) of the International 
Accounting Standards Board. Since 2001, the new set of standards has been 
known as IFRS.  And the IFRSs adopted by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) are called Bangladesh Financial Reporting 
Standards (BFRSs).

BFRS

Emissions of CO2 and other greenhouse gases from fuel combustion and 
electricity used in Orion Pharma's own operations  in tonnes.Carbon Emissions

The total amount of greenhouse gases produced to directly and indirectly 
support human activities, usually expressed in equivalent tons of carbon dioxide 
(CO2).

Carbon Footprint

A person who purchases medicines and drugs of Orion Pharma Ltd. for personal 
use.Consumer

The authorized capital of a company is the maximum amount of share capital 
that the company is authorised by its constitutional documents to issue (allocate) 
to shareholders. Authorized Capital

International Accounting Standards (IASs) of the International Accounting 
Standards Committee. And the IASs adopted by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) are called Bangladesh Accounting Standards 
(BASs).

BAS
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The framework of rules and practices by which a board of directors ensures 
accountability, fairness, and transparency in a company's relationship with its all 
stakeholders.

Corporate Governance 

Corporate social responsibility (CSR) refers to business practices involving 
initiatives that benefit society.CSR

Chemist shops that sell Orion Pharma's  products directly to consumers and in 
case of export, local companies of exporting countries who purchase medicines 
from Orion Pharma Ltd.Customer

Due diligence is an investigation or audit of a potential investment to confirm all 
facts, such as reviewing all financial records, plus anything else deemed material.Due Diligence 

Earnings per share (EPS) is the net result attributable to shareholders divided by 
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.EPS

Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) is an indicator of a company's 
profitability, calculated as revenue minus expenses, excluding tax and interest.EBIT

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) is a 
measure of a company's operating performance. It is a way to evaluate a 
company's performance without having to factor in financing decisions, 
accounting decisions or tax environments.

EBITDA

Effluent Treatment Plant (ETP), a process to convert wastewater - which is water 
no longer needed or suitable for its most recent use - into an effluent that can be 
either returned to the water cycle with minimal environmental issues or reused.

ETP

Global Reporting Initiative (GRI), global standard for sustainability reporting.GRI

An Independent director is a director (member) of a board of directors who does 
not have a material or pecuniary relationship with company or related persons, 
except sitting fees and would interfere with the exercise of independent 
judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of a director.

Independent Director
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An integrated annual report is a concise communication about how an 
organization’s strategy, governance, performance and prospects lead to the 
creation of value over the short, medium and long term.

Integrated Annual Report

An initial public offering (IPO) is the first time that the shares of a private 
company is offered to the public.IPO

Market capitalization (market cap) is the market value at a point in time of the 
shares outstanding of a publicly traded company, being equal to the share price 
at that point of time times the number of shares outstanding.

Market Capitalization

Non-controlling interest (NCI) is the portion of equity ownership in a subsidiary 
not attributable to the parent company, who has a controlling interest (greater 
than 50% but less than 100%) and consolidates the subsidiary's financial results 
with its own.

Non-Controlling Interest

Paid-up capital is the amount of money a company has received from 
shareholders in exchange for shares of stock.Paid-up Capital

A related-party transaction is a business deal or arrangement between two 
parties who are joined by a special relationship prior to the deal. Related Party Transactions

A person, group or organization that has interest or concern in an organization.
Stakeholders can affect or be affected by the organization's actions, objectives 
and policies. Some examples of key stakeholders are creditors, directors, 
employees, government (and its agencies), owners (shareholders), suppliers, 
unions, and the community from which the business draws its resources.

Stakeholder

A subsidiary company is a business entity that is controlled by another 
organization through ownership of more than 50% of its voting stock.Subsidiary Company

The process that employers use to hire, develop, and manage employees who 
become "successors" to the incumbents vacating positions within an 
organization.

Succession Planning



Thank You

Firstly, a huge thanks to everyone who has helped Orion Pharma Ltd. for 
achieving such "consistence performance" during the reporting period. We 
acknowledge the continued commitment and invincible enthusiasm received 
from our community, healthcare professionals and chemists which have allowed 
us to achieve this great accomplishment. We would like to extend our 
wholehearted thanks and gratitude to the host Government, regulatory bodies, 
shareholders, valued customers, financial institutions and well-wishers for their 
co-operation and support in the development of the Company. We also like to 
express our appreciation to the Board of Directors for their guidance, co-
operation and support to drive the Company in the right direction. We would 
also like to express heartfelt appreciation to all the workers and employees of the 
Company who rendered their devoted services for the welfare of the Company. 
Without your support OPL could not be such a success. We hope that the years 
ahead will see all of you supporting us with the same zeal and enthusiasm to 
achieve targets and transcend them as well and eventually to raise standards to a 
new level. 
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ORION PHARMA LIMITED
153-154, Tejgaon Industrial Area, Dhaka-1208.

PROXY FORM

l/We _________________________of ___________________________________________being a member of Orion Pharma 

Limited hereby appoint Mr./Mrs.________________________ of _______________________as my proxy to attend and 
vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 20th 
December, 2016 at 10:30 a.m. at Officers Club, 26, Baily Road, Ramna, Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh, and at any adjournment 
thereof. 

As witness my/our hand this________________________________ day of _____________________________2016 signed by 
the said in presence of ______________________________

_____________________
 (Signature of the Proxy)

___________________________
Signature of the Shareholder(s) 

___________________ Register Folio No. ___________
 Signature of Witness BO No._____________________

Dated _____________________
Note: 
A member entitled to attend and vote at the General Meeting may appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his/her stead. 
The proxy form, duly stamped, must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not later than 48 hours 
before the time appointed for the meeting. 

Signature Verified       
         

___________________
Authorised Signatory

Orion Pharma Ltd.

ORION PHARMA LIMITED
SHAREHOLDERS' ATTENDANCE SLIP

l/We hereby record my attendance at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 20th 
December, 2016 at 10:30 a.m. at Officers Club, 26, Baily Road, Ramna, Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh.

Name of Member(s) Proxy___________________________ Register Folio / BO No.__________________________________ 

holding of _________________________________________ ordinary Shares of Orion Pharma Limited.

______________________                   ____________________________
 (Signature of the Proxy)                   Signature of the Shareholder(s)

N.B.
1. Please note that AGM can only be attended by the honourable shareholder or properly constituted proxy. Therefore, 

any friend or children accompanying with honourable shareholder or proxy cannot be allowed into the meeting. 
2. Please present this slip at the reception Desk.

Revenue
Stamp

Tk. 20.00/-
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